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Foreword

“Resurrection” was the word the people of Bromley Parish Church used to
describe the building of their new Church on the rubble of its bombed out
predecessor, a victim, like so many, of the second world war.

“Resurrection” proclaims the Sanctuary window which displays the damaged
tower against a background of fire; the new Church itself and, between them,
an image of the risen Christ for whose worship the building exists.

“Resurrection” is the dedication of the Chapel created within the tower where
the prayers of the church are offered day by day for the community which
surrounds it and the mission of God who has blessed it.

As Bromley Parish Church celebrates the fiftieth anniversary of the
completion of the present church building we publish this new guide, both
to the building as it now stands and also to the history of the church in

this place. We have much to be thankful for to those who went before us;
both those who have maintained the life and mission of the church across
the centuries, and also those whose determination and prayer ensured its
rebuilding after the war. In our own time Bromley Parish Church stands for
the Gospel of resurrection as it always did and it presents a living witness to
the new life Christ offers us as it always has.

I am particularly grateful to Helen Gribble for writing this guide and for
working to ensure its publication and together we hope that readers will find
it both interesting and inspiring.
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EARLY DAYS OF BROMLEY PARISH CHURCH

Bromley Parish Church has played a significant role in the history of Bromley
from its early days as a manor to the present London Borough, a period of at

least 800 vears.

(GRANTING OF LAND TO THE
BisHOPS OF ROCHESTER

When the first church was built

on the present site is uncertain,

but from the records it is known
that the history of Bromley started
with Ethelbert, King of Wessex and
Kent granting ten ploughlands to
Dryhtwald, one of his ministers

in a charter of 862AD. Then in 966
or 967 King Eadgar granted lands
at Bromley to Aelfstan, Bishop of
Rochester, but shortly after the
lands were taken back. In 998 King
Ethelred IT - the Unready - was
reconciled with the monks of St
Andrew of Rochester and most of the
land was restored to the Bishop.

After the Norman Conquest,
Odo - half brother of William the
Conqueror - Bishop of Bayeux and
Earl of Kent seized some of the
Bishop's land including the manor
of Bromley. Lanfranc (Archbishop
of Canterbury) who had appointed
Gundulph in 1077 as Bishop of
Rochester complained to the King;
this resulted in the restoration of
land to the Bishop, including the
manor of Bromley. A reference in
the Domesday Book to the Bishop's
‘demesne’ in Bromley indicates a
residence but not a separate parish
church. It is likely that Bishop
Gundulph built an Episcopal manor

house or palace soon after 1080,

he was a master builder having

the Keep of the Tower of London
and Rochester Castle to his credit.

A spring containing medicinal
properties was found in the grounds
of the Bishop's Palace and dedicated
as a Holy Well, incorporated into

a Chapel of St Blaise. This chapel
may well have served as the parish
church.

FIRST RECORD OF A SEPARATE
PARISH CHURCH IN BROMLEY

Below:
The first written record indicating Print of Bromley Parish
the possibility of a separate church Church in the 18th century




2 ! EARLY DAYS OF BROMLEY PARISH CHURCH

appeared in the Registrum Roffense
- the Register of the Bishops of
Rochester in about 1126; this included
a record of 9d paid as ‘Chrism Rent’
to the Bishop for consecrated oil

used in baptism. The register also
records several grants being made
between 1148 and 1182 to Hugone de
Bromleghe (Presbiter de Bromleghe).

FIRST RECORD OF A RECTOR

The first recorded rector was

Richard de Wendover 1226-1238,
who afterwards became Bishop of
Rochester and was later buried in
Westminster Abbey. These records
indicate a separate parish church
early in the 13th century and possibly
much of the 12th century. The
Bishop's Register in 1310 mentions
together the existence of St Blaise’s
Chapel in the Bishop's Palace and a
separate church dedicated to St Peter
and St Paul.

1327 REBUILDING IN THE
GOTHIC STYLE

In 1327 it appears that the church
was almost in ruins, it was rebuilt in
the Gothic style and consisted of a
chancel, nave, south aisle, entrance
porch on the south side plus a
confessional within the building; this
rebuilding was made possible with
money raised by the Bishop which
included a levy on the residents

of the manor. No further major
alterations took place until the 18th
century.

1537 APPOINTMENT OF
PERPETUAL VICARS

The living of Bromley continued as
a rectory until 1537 when by order
of Henry VIII it was transferred to
the Bishops of Rochester who were
commanded to “appoint, ordain
and sufficiently endow perpetual
Vicars'. The earliest Church Registers
date from just after this time, the
Register of Baptisms starts in 1558,
Marriages in 1575 and Burials 1578.
After the Reformation the majority
of the vestments, altar cloths and
church plate had been removed, but
by the end of the 17th and early 18th
century these had been replaced by
various gifts to the church. In 1646
a Bill of Parliament required the
Church to sell many of its estates,
this included the manor of Bromley.
However, Bishop Warner managed
to retain the Bishop's Palace (except
for a short period in his latter years
when it was sold and later returned
to the Bishop). Bishop Warner died
in 1666 and his legacy paid for the
foundation of Bishop Warner’s
Foundation now Bromley and
Sheppard’s Colleges, to provide
almshouses for the widows of
clergymen. The colleges now house
retired clergy themselves as well as
their spouses and clergy widows;
some collegians are active members
of the Parish Church.



1739 EXTRA SEATING
REQUIRED

In the 18th century disfigurement

of the church began due to the
building of galleries, as there was a
need to increase the seating capacity.
In 1778 a second gallery above the
one already constructed at the west
end of the church was provided for
the Charity children who attended
from the Charity School in the town.
With the need to have more seating
the fire engine was removed. It was
customary at that time for this to

be housed in the church, also that
meetings on secular topics would be
held either in the vestry or in church
immediately after the Sunday service.
This practice related to the dual
responsibility of the Parish Vestry

in that it not only administered the
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church but was also responsible for
the general business matters of the
town. The Bromley Vestry Minute
books date back to 1703, but the first
recorded Vestry Clerk was appointed
in 1673.

In 1777 a new clock was
purchased, this time one that chimed.
In 1797 the large east window was
bricked up and replaced by a small
circular one; this remained until
about 1829 when a two-light and
later three-light window was put in
place. With the church dedicated to
St Peter and St Paul the left and right
hand lights were occupied by them,
with the Ascension depicted in the
centre. An organ was built in 1825
and later reconstructed in 1856. In
1791 the Vestry was broken into and
the church robbed of a chalice, flagon

Left: Bromley Parish
Church in the mid
nineteenth century
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Below: A picture showing the
Sfudl extent of the desolation
of Bromley Parish Church
caused by a 550 pound
bomb in the Bromley ‘Blirz’

and paten, the theft was thought to
be the work of more than one person
because a whole bottle of wine was
taken from the cupboard and drunk.

1824-1830 REBUILDING OF
THE CHURCH

The state of the interior of the church
was such that it became necessary
for either extensive renovations

or rebuilding to take place and so
between 1824 and 1830 the latter
option was chosen and the church

was rebuilt, only the Norman font
and tower were left; the rebuilding
was in the new Victorian Gothic

style,

1875 THE BIsSHOPS OF
ROCHESTER LEAVE BROMLEY

In 1875 the Bishops of Rochester sold
Bromley Palace and thus ended 600
years of their close relationship with
Bromley. The Church Commissioners
recommended the Diocese of
Rochester purchase land in Essex as
a residence for the Bishop and sell off
the manor house in Bromley. Bromley
then became part of the Diocese of
Canterbury until 1905 when it once
again became incorporated into

the Diocese of Rochester, the latter
having reverted to its former area
following the creation of the Diocese
of Southwark.

WorLD WAR Il AND THE
CHURCH IN RUINS

The parish church remained
unaltered and also unscathed
through World War I, but was
destroyed by enemy action in World
War II as a result of a landmine on
the night of Wednesday, 16th April
1941, leaving only the damaged
tower standing,



Post WorLbD WAR Il = THE
REBUILDING

After World War Il permission was
granted for the church to be rebuilt;
this led to much discussion regarding
the style and included visits by the
vicar and his team to view recently
built churches. The new church at
Kenton near Harrow, Middlesex was
chosen as the one on which the new
Bromley church would be modelled.
The architect was ]. Harold Gibbons
and he was invited to submit designs,
these were approved by the Church
Council in 1948, The builders were
Dove Bros. of Islington who at the time
were building Guildford Cathedral.
The new church would be 160 feet

6 inches in length, 66 feet across at
the widest part and seat 830 people.
Stones from Rochester and Canterbury
cathedrals were incorporated in

the wall of the Children’s Chapel
alongside the foundation stone; the
latter was laid by HRH Princess
Elizabeth on 13th October 1949. On
20th December 1952 the nave of the
church was consecrated by the Bishop
of Rochester, the Right Reverend
Christopher Chavasse, he returned on
14th December 1957 to consecrate the
chancel and sanctuary.

As you look round the church
you cannot fail to notice how many
things were generously donated by
other churches and organisations,
and together with the hard work
and generosity of the parishioners in
raising funds, a new Bromley Parish
Church was able to be built and rise
from the ruins.
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Below: Foundation Stone
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Above: Figure of Christ the
King (over north door)

Right: Consecration Stone

A TOUR OF THE CHURCH

THE AMBULATORY

The best place to start your tour is

by entering through the main north
door over which is a figure of Christ
the King. At this point one is at the
eastern end of the ambulatory and
under an arch to your right is the
Consecration Stone. The then Bishop
of Rochester - the Right Reverend
Christopher Chavasse - consecrated
the new nave in 1952 and returned on
14th December 1957 to consecrate the
chancel and sanctuary, this marked
the virtual completion of the re-
building and re-dedication.

The ambulatory contains a
number of memorial stones and
brasses, most of which were salvaged
from the ruins after the bombing. The
large dark gravestone is in memory
of Zachary Pearce, a former Bishop

of Rochester for 18 years. He died

in 1774 leaving £5,000 to Bromley
College to pay the stipend of the
College Chaplain and some extra
for the clergy widows living there.
A small dark gravestone next to
Bishop Zachary Pearce’s is that of
Elizabeth (Tetty) Johnson, the wife
of Dr Samuel Johnson, the writer and
lexicographer. The date of her death
should be 1752 not 1753, The three
Thornhill brasses commemorate
Richard Thornhill, a benefactor of
the church who died in 1600; he left
‘two clokes” for the clerk and sexton.
Three other memorial brasses are
those of the Tweedy Family who
over the years played a prominent
part in the history of Bromley.

Buried in a niche in the
ambulatory are the ashes of four
persons closely connected with the




rebuilding of the present church:

J. Harold Gibbons the architect, who
died on 30th December 1957 just

16 days after the completion and
consecration of the church, Canon
Murray Walton who was vicar
during the rebuilding period, and
his wife; also the ashes of Edward
Horton the verger during this time.

At the end of the ambulatory
on the north side is the Children’s

Chapel (see page 18), but first enter
the main church by the north-west
door on your left.
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Left: Plague o . Harold
Gibbons, Church Archizect

Left: Memorial stones and
plagues in the ambulatory
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Above: Statues and shields
on the front of the gallery at
the west end of the church

WEST END OF THE CHURCH

Stand and look towards the west
wall, In the centre is a doorway
leading into a short corridor (the
Link) and on into the Church
Rooms (see page 20). On either side
of the doorway are statues of the
patron saints - on the left St Peter,
and on the right St Paul. The arms
of the Bishop of Rochester are on
the front of the gallery along with
shields representing other people
and organisations associated with
the church e.g, the Archbishop of
Canterbury and the arms of the old
Borough of Bromley (1903-1965).
Hanging on the west wall is a list
of rectors and vicars from 1226 to
the present day; the first recorded
rector is Richard de Wendover (1226)
although a church had been on this
site since the early middle ages.

He is the only incumbent of
Bromley to have been consecrated
Bishop of Rochester (1238) although
several vicars in latter years were
consecrated bishop of other diocese.
The two book tables were a gift from

St Paul’s Church, Halifax, Nova
Scotia.

THE BAPTISTRY

Move across to the southwest corner
and view the Baptistry. The basin

of the font is of Bethersden marble
and consistent with its Norman
origin has four plain rounded arches
carved on each side; it was one of the
three items of the church to survive
the bombing in 1941, The window
behind the font on the south wall,
along with the Te Deum window
over the main north door was

the work of M.E. Aldrich-Rope of
Parsons Green, London. A sketch of
the original design (slightly altered
when the window was made) was
found in 2002 and now hangs in the
Shortlands Room (see page 20).

The window depicts the
Christian’s progress from Baptism to
Heaven, shown by a long winding
pilgrimage of children from this
font at the bottom to the City of God
at the top. Immediately beneath
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passes four medallions, these
encompass aspects of the Christian
life - Confirmation, Baptism of

the Ethiopian as a reminder of

the beginning of the spread of
Christianity to all races, Our Lord
surrounded by children, and lastly
Jesus’ own Baptism in the River
Jordan.

A text from Zechariah ‘“The streets
of the City shall be full of boys and x
girls playing in the streets thereof’ is |
seen at the bottom of the window.
Opposite page: Artist’s
original drawing of window
i the Baptistry
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Abouve: View from nave
rowvards High Alrar
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THE NAVE

Now walk through the centre aisle
of the Nave and when halfway, turn
and look back - suddenly a very
plain concrete building becomes alive
with colour from the large number of
kneelers. The Nave Kneeler Project
began in 1994 when it was intended
to make 400 kneelers supplied by
Jacksons of Hebden Bridge and
embroidered by members of the
congregation, these to be in wool

in cross stitch on canvas and then
professionally finished. The wools
to be used would be bright and add
much needed colour to the nave.
Many are dedicated to loved ones or
mark special celebrations of birth,
marriage or parish occasions. This
project followed on from a similar
one started in the mid 1970s to
replace those in the Lady Chapel
and south aisle. To mark the new
millennium an Altar Rail Kneeler
Project was launched, the kneelers






